1948

# Ralph D. Slater, dba International Publishers Service v. Salt Lake City, and L. C. Crowther : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

## STATEMENT OF FACTS

This appeal is from the order of the district court dismissing the complaint for failure to state a cause of action(Tr. 23) following the election of appellant to stand on his complaint upon sustaining of a demurrer thereto. The demurrer (Tr. 18) was based on a failure to state a cause of action or state a case for injunctive relief. The order sustaining the demurrer (Tr. 23) denied the right to amend the complaint and ordered a dismissal thereof, thus indicating that the ruling of the court was for failure to state a cause of action for any

relief whatever. It will therefore be assumed that the ruling of the court was that the complaint stated grounds for equitable relief but that it failed to state a cause of action entitling appellant to any relief whatever.

Since the appeal is on the judgment roll there is no transcript of evidence. There is, however, a memorandum decision (Tr. 20-22) stating the court's reasons for sustaining the demurrer of the respondent. The complaint alleges that the action of respondents is violative of appellants rights of freedom of speech and press, the right to engage in interstate commerce without interference, that it deprives appellant of his business without due process of law, and of the equal protection of the laws, and that the ordinance by which respondents justify their action is discriminatory and unconstitutional.

There follows the complaint, without the title and verification (Tr. 1-8):

---

Plaintiff complains of defendants and for cause of action alleges as follows:

1. That at all times mentioned herein plaintiff, Ralph Slater, was doing business as the International Publishers Service, and as such engaged in business in the state of Utah and elsewhere. Plaintiff as such has filed heretofore with the County Clerk of Salt Lake County, State of Utah, an affidavit of assumed named in the manner required by Section 58-2-1, Utah Code Annotated, 1943.

2. Plaintiff now is and for many years has been a broker representing various national magazine distributors and publishers, and he is, and at all times mentioned herein, was, thoroughly qualified personally, and through agents and employees, to contract and sell subscriptions to, and to sell, magazines such as INTER-MOUNTAIN SPORTSMAN, GOLFER AND SPORTSMAN, DINE AND DANCE, and many other and various publications.

3. It is the business custom of plaintiff to obtain and send agents into all the states of the Union, soliciting and obtaining subscriptions to the publications in paragraph 2 hereof mentioned. For over a year last past, plaintiff doing business as International Publishers Service, has had permanent headquarters in Los Angeles, California.

4. For one and one-half years last past, and particularly for five weeks last past plaintiff has conducted his said business using the methods described in this complaint, and at intervals since 1947 has so conducted said business in Salt Lake City, Utah. Plaintiff is willing to pay any lawful license fees, and to abide by any lawful regulations, so as to do business in Salt Lake City. Plaintiff is protected against derelictions of plaintiff's agents and employees by bonds of the WILLIAM J. BURNS INTERNATIONAL DETECTIVE AGENCY. It has always been and will be the policy of plaintiff to make every effort to assure that the solicitations of magazine subscriptions to the publications aforesaid are conducted in a quiet, fair and lawful

manner; and that subscribers are accepted only in the event they give a definite place of address; and that said subscribers receive that which they contract and pay to receive.

5. Defendant Salt Lake City now is, and at all times mentioned herein was, a municipal corporation within the State of Utah, and as such duly organized and incorporated pursuant to the laws of said State of Utah.

6. Defendant L. C. Crowther, now is, and at all times mentioned herein was, Chief of Police of said Salt Lake City; and as such he now is, and at all times mentioned herein was, charged with the enforcement, in said City of the ordinances hereinafter mentioned.

7. The Board of Commissioners of Salt Lake City, passed and enacted an ordinance known as Section 3652 of the Revised Ordinances of Salt Lake City, Utah, parts of which read as follows:

“It shall be unlawful for any person to peddle or offer for sale, barter or exchange at retail, any garden or farm produce, fruits, butter, eggs, poultry, fish, game, or any other goods, wares or merchandise whatsoever, or any tickets, coupons or receipts representing value or redeemable in service, photographs, works of art, magazine subscriptions, goods or merchandise whatsoever, in upon or along any street of Salt Lake City without first obtaining a license so to do.

“It shall be unlawful for any person, under any circumstances, to peddle, sell or offer for sale any magazine subscriptions, goods, wares



or merchandise whatsoever, in upon or along any of the following streets, to-wit:

“South Temple street from Second East street to First West street; First South street from Second East street to First West street; Second South street from Second East street to First West street; Third South street from Second East street to First West street; Fourth South street from Second East street to First West street; State street from First North street to Fifth South street; Main street from First North street to Fifth South street; and no license shall be granted to any person to peddle in upon or along the said streets above described . . . ,”.

Violations of said ordinances are made punishable by arrest and imprisonment, under provisions of Section 3718 of the said Revised Ordinances of Salt Lake City, Utah.

8. Plaintiff now is and has been, engaged on the public streets and sidewalks in said Salt Lake City, and in areas, doorways and entranceways immediately abutting thereon, in the business of soliciting and selling, *in a quiet, dignified and peaceful manner, without pressure or undue influence*, by and through agents and employees employed by him for the purpose of selling, to persons on said places, subscriptions to the magazines and periodicals aforesaid, for future delivery, and likewise the sale of tangible personal property to be delivered to the purchasers thereof, or to some other person, at a subsequent time. Some of the said subscriptions were and will be sent to other states and were and will be filled by sending into Utah the publications which

are published in other states. Some of the other subscriptions were and will be filled by sending into other states the publications which are published in Utah.

The methods of street solicitation by plaintiff, his agents and employees, described in this complaint, and especially as described in this paragraph 8 hereof, now are, and at all the times mentioned in this complaint were, the major source and the main manner of selling the property and obtaining subscriptions to the publications mentioned in this complaint, including, among other, the property and publications mentioned in paragraphs 2 and 3 of this complaint. The said methods of street solicitation now are, and at all the times mentioned in this complaint were, by far, the most effective method; and, in a great many cases, the only possible methods of selling said property and obtaining said subscriptions.

9. At sundry and various times, while plaintiff was peaceably so engaged in carrying on said business, by and through his agents and employees, in said Salt Lake City, the defendants herein, acting by and through police officers of the defendant municipality, and for the purpose of preventing plaintiff from so soliciting, by and through his agents and employees, sales of such subscriptions and sales of such tangible personal property, arrested certain of plaintiff's said agents and employees for alleged violations of said ordinance, and ordered other of plaintiff's said agents and employees not to make said sales, and threatened to make further arrests of them, and to prosecute all said agents and

employees for alleged violations of said ordinance, thereby preventing and threatening to continue to prevent, plaintiff from carrying on in the manner aforesaid his said business in said Salt Lake City, all to plaintiff's great pecuniary damage and irreparable loss. And plaintiff avers and charges that said arrests, and said orders and said threats of further arrests and prosecutions, were made for the purpose of hindering, harassing, impeding, delaying and frustrating, and did hinder, harass, impede, delay and frustrate the efforts and attempts of plaintiff and his said agents and employees, in carrying on and conducting plaintiff's said business in said Salt Lake City; and plaintiff charges and avers that said arrests, and threatened arrests, and prosecutions, were made by defendants for the purpose of compelling plaintiff, and did compel plaintiff, to stop and abandon the further operation of his said business within the above described portions of Salt Lake City, Utah.

10. Plaintiff is advised by his counsel, and now avers, that said ordinance is, and that all the aforesaid acts and threatened acts of defendants thereunder are, and will be, violative of Sections 15 and 24 of Article I of the Constitution of Utah, and of Section 1 of the Fourteenth Amendment to the Constitution of the United States, in that, said ordinance, not being regulatory, is arbitrary and oppressive, and is an outright prohibition of lawful business and of the right of plaintiff to engage in a lawful business.

11. By their said acts, the defendants, in violation of Sections 15 and 24 of Article I of the Constitution

of Utah, and of Section 1 of the Fourteenth Amendment to the Constitution of the United States, have denied to plaintiffs the equal protection of the laws in the manner following, to-wit:

(1) Many persons other than plaintiff and other than plaintiff's agents and employees have, on numerous occasions, violated with impunity the provisions of said ordinance in that they have on the public streets and sidewalks of said City, doorways and entranceways immediately abutting thereon, solicited, and are continuing to solicit, the sale, to persons on said places of subscriptions to magazines and periodicals for future delivery, goods, wares and merchandise, and have sold, and are continuing to sell, to persons on such places tangible personal property, goods, wares and merchandise.

Among the magazines, periodicals and tangible personal property so sold and so solicited for sale by such other persons are the following:

(a) Magazines known as "Consolation" and "Watchtower", published and circulated by a cult known known as "Jehovah's Witnesses";

(b) Coupons entitling persons of whom a photograph had been taken, to have delivered to him or her, as the case may be, the photograph of himself or herself, as the case may be;

(c) Coupons entitling purchasers to sightseeing tours of Salt Lake City and other places in the state of Utah.

None of said other persons who have so violated

the provisions of said ordinance have ever been arrested or prosecuted, or in anywise molested by defendants, or by either of them, or by any of the agents or representatives of defendants, or of either defendant, or by any of the police officers of said Salt Lake City.

(3) Defendants, their agents and representatives, and police officers of said Salt Lake City who act under the authority of said defendant Chief of Police, have at all times had notice and knowledge of said violations of said ordinance by said third parties as aforesaid, and, possessing such notice and knowledge, defendants, their agents and representatives, and said police officers, with intent to discriminate against plaintiffs and plaintiff's said business, have at all times deliberately refrained from enforcing said ordinance as against said third party violators thereof.

12. Plaintiff is advised by his counsel, and now avers, that said ordinance is, and that all the aforesaid acts and threatened acts of defendants thereunder are, and will be violative of Sections 15 and 24 of Article I of the Constitution of the State of Utah and of the First Amendment to the Constitution of the United States in that said ordinance bars, in the manner alleged, the distribution and dissemination of said publications and thereby prevents the exercise by the publishers and plaintiff of their constitutional rights of the freedom of press and the freedom of speech.

13. Plaintiff is advised by his counsel, and now avers, that said ordinance is, and that all the aforesaid acts and threatened acts of defendants thereunder are,

and will be, violative of Sections 15 and 24 of Article I of the Constitution of the State of Utah, and of the "Equal protection clause" of Section I of said Fourteenth Amendment to the Constitution of the United States in that, without any reasonable basis therefor, said ordinance, which when read together with Section 3647 of the said Revised Ordinances of Salt Lake City, Utah, excluding "newspaper" boys from the class identified as "hawkers", makes an arbitrary classification as between that class of persons who solicit the sale of subscriptions and tangible personal property and that class of persons who solicit the sale of newspapers, thereby arbitrarily discriminating in favor of those who sell newspapers and against those who sell magazines, with the result that there is granted to the class which sells newspapers a privilege from which those who sell magazines are arbitrarily excluded.

14. Plaintiff is advised by his counsel, and now avers, that said ordinance is, and that all the aforesaid acts and threatened acts of defendants thereunder are, and will be, violative of the "commerce clause" of Article I, Section 8 of the Constitution of the United States, in that said acts do, and will, materially burden and interfere with the free flow of legitimate interstate commerce, by preventing plaintiff from obtaining subscriptions for magazines to be sent from other states and from being filled by sending into Utah the publications which are published in the other states, and by preventing plaintiff from obtaining other of said subscriptions for magazines to be sent to other states and

from being filled by sending into the other states the publications which are published in Utah.

15. Plaintiff has no plain, speedy or adequate remedy at law and he files this, his complaint, as a complaint and affidavit for the purpose of securing a temporary restraining order and temporary and permanent injunction against the defendants. The defendants will, unless restrained by this court, enforce the said ordinance against plaintiff and his said agents and representatives and will thereby injure and destroy the plaintiff's said property and property rights, and cause them material and irreparable loss, and plaintiff will be unable to conduct their said business in Salt Lake City. The matter in controversy exceeds, exclusive of interest and costs, many thousands of dollars. The value of the right of plaintiff to carry on his said business, free from the harrassing and unlawful acts threatened by defendants as alleged hereinbefore, exceeds many thousands of dollars. Moreover, unless defendants be restrained from committing the acts which they are threatening to commit, as alleged hereinbefore, there is imminent danger that said agents and representatives will leave the service of plaintiff and plaintiff will be unable to obtain replacements, for fear of and in distress over said acts of defendants, and plaintiff's said business in Salt Lake City, which is and has been over a long period of time a very substantial portion of plaintiff's total business, will be totally destroyed, all to plaintiff's great and irreparable injury and damage. Plaintiff avers that the relief requested herein is absolutely nec-

essary for the protection of plaintiffs, his agents and representatives, against the wanton further molestation by the said defendants.

WHEREFORE, plaintiff prays:

1. That an order issue out of this court, enjoining and restraining the defendants, their officers, agents, servants, employees and attorneys, from interfering with or molesting plaintiff, his agents, representatives in connection with the soliciting by them, or by any of them, of the sales of subscriptions to magazines or periodicals for future delivery, or the sales by them, or by any of them, of any tangible personal property to be delivered at a subsequent time or immediately.

2. For a preliminary and final injunction, enjoining and restraining defendants, their officers, agents, servants, employees and attorneys, from interfering with or molesting plaintiff, his agents, servants and employees in connection with the soliciting by them, or by any of them, of the sales of subscriptions to magazines or periodicals or the sales by them or any of them, of any tangible personal property to be delivered immediately or at a subsequent time.

3. For such other and further relief as the Court may deem just and proper.

ROBERT S. RICHARDS,  
*Attorney for Plaintiff.*



## STATEMENT OF APPELLANT'S CASE

Section 3652 of the Revised Ordinances of Salt Lake City, 1944, provides that peddlers of certain articles must obtain licenses before selling or offering to sell their wares in the city of Salt Lake. It also provides that peddlers of some of those articles may not sell or offer to sell their articles at all within a certain defined business district of the city. The general provision requiring licenses covers those who sell any tickets, coupons or receipts representing value or redeemable in service, photographs, works of art, magazine subscriptions and any goods, wares and merchandise. The latter provision prohibits in the business district the sale only of magazine subscriptions and goods, wares and merchandise. Appellant's contention at the outset is that it is unconstitutional for the city to attempt to prohibit conversations on the public streets notwithstanding those conversations partake of a business nature, for the reason that it is a denial of the right of free speech, and that forbidding the sale of magazine subscriptions is not only a denial of the freedom of speech and press, but also an interference with interstate commerce, inasmuch as the magazines are to be shipped either from without the state of Utah to purchasers in the state or from the state of Utah to purchasers outside of Utah.

If this section is justified it must be for the reason that it is a reasonable prohibition for the purpose of promoting the health, safety, comfort, morals or general welfare of the public. The only purpose, conceivable to appellant, for which the prohibition in this sec-

tion was adopted is to promote the general welfare by assuring the free flow of pedestrian traffic on the sidewalks of the business district. Appellant concedes that the erection of a stand on the public sidewalk or the stopping of a cart from which articles are sold or distributed would be an interference with traffic, which may be prohibited to promote the general welfare. But appellant contends that it is not necessary to the free flow of traffic to prohibit the activities of moving peddlers regardless of what they are selling; that it is not of sufficient importance to the general welfare of the public to restrict certain citizens in their freedom of speech and press, and to interfere with interstate commerce.

Further, appellant contends that as the sections of the ordinances appear on their face there is an unreasonable discrimination in the differentiation between solicitation of magazine subscriptions and the sale of newspapers, tickets, coupons and receipts. The differentiation bears no reasonable relation to the problem of traffic control.

Should the court hold that the ordinance on its face is valid for the reason that the intention of the Board of Commissioners in adopting said ordinance was to prohibit peddling of any kind whatsoever on the streets of the business district, then appellant contends that the intentional discrimination in the enforcement of the ordinance on the part of respondents against appellant, his agents, representatives and employees, in favor of salesmen of tickets for sightseeing tours, photograph

coupons, receipts, ice cream, "poppies," rodeo tickets, etc., is unconstitutional as a denial of equal protection of the law, and should be enjoined.

This argument is advanced under four points.

### **POINTS OF APPELLANT'S ARGUMENT**

I. Section 3652, Revised Ordinances of Salt Lake City, 1944, is an infringement of the inherent and inalienable right to communicate freely thoughts and opinions and abridges and restrains the freedom of speech and of the press.

II. Section 3652, *supra*, is a burden upon interstate commerce in contravention of the Constitution in that it prohibits the free flow of goods between the states and limits the area within which goods may flow.

III. Section 3652, *supra*, is void because it is arbitrary, capricious, and not supported by any reason, logic, lawful classification or legitimate objective.

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