1948

# Ralph D. Slater, dba International Publishers Service v. Salt Lake City, and L. C. Crowther : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

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

## ARGUMENT

I. THE CITY HAS POWER AND THE DUTY TO ENACT ORDINANCES REGULATING SALES ON ITS HIGHWAYS AND SIDEWALKS.

The State of Utah has delegated to cities the power to regulate sales and the movement of pedestrians on its streets and sidewalks. Some of these grants by the state to cities are as follows:

“15-8-29. **TRAFFICKING IN STREETS.** They may regulate merchandising and sales upon the streets, sidewalks and public places.” U.C.A. 1943.

“15-8-30. **REGULATION OF TRAFFIC.** They may regulate the movement of traffic on the streets, sidewalks and public places, including the movement of pedestrians as well as of vehicles, and the cars and engines of railroads, street rail-



roads and tramways, and may prevent racing and immoderate driving or riding." U.C.A. 1943.

"15-8-11. STREETS—ENCROACHMENTS, LIGHTING, SPRINKLING, CLEANING. They may regulate the use of streets, alleys, avenues, sidewalks, crosswalks, parks and public grounds, prevent and remove obstructions and encroachments thereon, and provide for the lighting, sprinkling and cleaning of the same." U.C.A. 1943.

"15-8-23. C L E A N I N G PROPERTY, STREETS AND SIDEWALKS. They may regulate and control the use of sidewalks and all structures thereunder or thereover; and they may require the owner or occupant, or the agent of any owner or occupant, of property to remove all weeds and noxious vegetation from such property, and in front thereof to the curb line of the street, and to keep the sidewalks in front of such property free from litter, snow, ice and obstructions." U.C.A. 1943.

"15-8-39. LICENSE OF CERTAIN BUSINESSES. They may license, tax and regulate hawking and peddling, etc. \* \* \* U.C.A. 1943.

"15-8-80. LICENSE FEES AND TAXES. They may raise revenue by levying and collecting a license fee or tax on any business within the limits of the city, and regulate the same by ordinance, etc." U.C.A. 1943.

"15-8-84. ORDINANCES—PUNISHMENT. They may pass all ordinances and rules, and make all regulations, not repugnant to law, necessary for carrying into effect or discharging all powers and duties conferred by this chapter, and such as are necessary and proper to provide for the

safety and preserve the health, and promote the prosperity, improve the morals, peace and good order, comfort and conveniences of the city and the inhabitants thereof, and for the protection of property therein; etc." U.C.A. 1943.

It is evident from the foregoing grants of power that cities have the power to adopt ordinances tending to promote the general welfare of the public and the use of its streets and sidewalks and the right to regulate the business of sales for personal gain upon its streets and sidewalks and public places. These powers ipso facto carry with them the authority not only to impose reasonable restrictions and regulations but even the power to suppress sales thereon. *People vs. Thompson*, 173 N. E. 137.

In the case of *Wade v. City and County of San Francisco*, 186 Pac. 2d, 181, the court said "that an ordinance prohibiting solicitation on any public street or highway or in any area or doorway or entrance immediately abutting thereon of magazine subscriptions for future delivery is prima facie constitutional."

It is the duty of the city to maintain its streets in such condition that the public should at all times have the unobstructed use thereof. *People v. Corn Products Refining Co.*, 121 N. E. 574.

The city holds title to our public streets in trust for the use and benefit of the public and the public is entitled to use such streets free of obstructions. *City of Chicago v. McKinley*, 176 N. E. 261.

## II. THE RESTRICTION BY THE CITY ORDINANCE OF SALES IN A CONGESTED BUSINESS AREA IS NOT AN INFRINGEMENT ON THE RIGHT OF FREEDOM OF SPEECH AND OF THE PRESS.

The respondents have no quarrel with the statement made by appellant that "the inherent and inalienable right to enjoy freedom of speech and freedom of the press have been secured by the constitutions of the United States and of the State of Utah."

The United States Supreme Court has ruled many times upon questions involving these provisions in the constitutions. Appellant relies in his brief upon the decisions handed down in the case of *Schneider v. Irvington*, 308 U. S. 147, 84 L. Ed. 155, and also recite in support of his position the cases of *Lovell v. City of Griffin*, 303 U. S. 444, and *Hague v. C. I. O.*, 307 U. S. 496, 83 L. Ed. 1423.

These are all cases where religion or a private controversy were being aired publicly by the distribution of leaflets or printed mater and where ordinances were in force that required the obtaining of a permit before any such printed matter could be distributed, or where there were provisions to the effect that such leaflets could not be thrown upon the public streets or where the chief of police was delegated unlimited discretion to determine who might or who might not distribute such printed matter.

The cases are well settled that where a question of religion or a private controversy are being presented by printed or spoken word the same may be distributed or spoken in all public places including streets and sidewalks, subject only to any and all reasonable regulations by the local authorities.

The cases are also unanimously in accord that no person has any inherent right to conduct or carry on a private business for his personal gain in a public street and that such private business for gain is at all times subject to local regulation or complete suppression dependent upon the local needs or requirements. This also extends to the selling of magazines or other printed matter upon a public street as a matter of private gain or business.

There can be no doubt from the allegations of appellant's complaint that he was engaging in business for private gain on the public streets of Salt Lake City for paragraphs 8, 9 and 15 of plaintiff's complaint provide in part as follows:

“8. Plaintiff now is and has been, engaged on the public streets and sidewalks in said Salt Lake City, and in areas, doorways and entrances immediately abutting thereon, in the business of soliciting and selling, in a quiet, dignified and peaceful manner, without pressure or undue influence, by and through agents and employees employed by him for the purpose of selling, to persons on said places, subscriptions to the magazines and periodicals aforesaid, for future delivery, and likewise the sale of tangible personal

property to be delivered to the purchasers thereof, or to some other person, at a subsequent time.”

“9. \* \* \* in said Salt Lake City, the defendants herein, acting by and through police officers of the defendant municipality, and for the purpose of preventing plaintiff from so soliciting, by and through his agents and employees, sales of such subscriptions and sales of such tangible personal property, arrested certain of plaintiff’s said agents and employees for alleged violations of said ordinance, \* \* \* continue to prevent, plaintiff from carrying on in the manner aforesaid his said business in said Salt Lake City, all to plaintiff’s great pecuniary damage and irreparable loss.”

“15. The defendants will, unless restrained by this court, enforce the said ordinance against plaintiff and his said agents and representatives and will thereby injure and destroy the plaintiff’s said property and property rights, and cause them material and irreparable loss, and plaintiff will be unable to conduct their said business in Salt Lake City. The matter in controversy exceeds, exclusive of interest and costs, many thousands of dollars. The value of the right of plaintiff to carry on his said business, free from the harrassing and unlawful acts threatened by defendants as alleged hereinbefore, exceeds many thousands of dollars.”

In the case of *Schneider v. Irvington*, *supra*, the court said at page 163, where referring to the ordinance then under attack:

“The ordinance is not limited to those who canvass for private profit; nor is it merely the

common type of ordinance requiring some form of registration or license of hawkers or peddlers. It is not a general ordinance to prohibit trespassing. It bans unlicensed communication of any views or the advocacy of any cause from door to door, and permits canvassing only subject to the power of a police officer to determine, as a censor, what literature may be distributed from house to house and who may distribute it.”

The same court further on page 165 states:

“We are not to be taken as holding that commercial soliciting and canvassing may not be subjected to such regulation as the ordinances requires.”

The latest United States Supreme Court case decided on the question of freedom of the press and freedom of speech is perhaps the case of *Saia v. People*, decided on June 7, 1948, and reported in 68 Sup. Ct. 1148, a 5 to 4 decision in which the court held a city ordinance void which permitted sound trucks to operate in public places only if they first obtained a permit from the chief of police, the court saying in part with reference to said ordinance that the said ordinance was void for the reason that it provided for no standards prescribed for the exercise of the chief of police's discretion and that the ordinance was not narrowly drawn to regulate the hours or places of use of loud-speakers or the volume of sound to which they must be adjusted. The Saia case is a case involving the use of a sound truck for religious purposes and even under such conditions the court infers that an ordinance would be valid regu-

lating freedom of speech and religion by controlling the hours and the place of discussion permitted and the amount of sound allowed.

On April 13, 1942, the United States Supreme Court sustained an absolute prohibition of commercial advertising on city streets in the case of *Valentine vs. Chrestensen*, 316 U. S. 52, 96 L. Ed. 1262. In that case a regulation of the City of New York prohibited the distribution of commercial handbills on the public streets. The court upheld such measure as a valid exercise of the city's police power, declaring that it did not interfere with the freedom of speech and press guaranteed by the Federal Constitution; and stated:

“This court has unequivocally held that the streets are proper places for the exercise of the freedom of communicating information and disseminating opinion and that, though the states and municipalities may appropriately regulate the privilege in the public interest, they may not unduly burden or proscribe its employment in these public thoroughfares. We are equally clear that the Constitution imposes no such restraint on government as respects purely commercial advertising. Whether, and to what extent, one may promote or pursue a gainful occupation in the streets, to what extent such activity shall be adjudged a derogation of the public right of user, are matters for legislative judgment. The question is not whether the legislative body may interfere with the harmless pursuit of a lawful business, but whether it must permit such pursuit by what it deems an undesirable invasion of, or interference with, the full and free use of the highways by the

people in fulfillment of the public use to which streets are dedicated. If the respondent was attempting to use the streets of New York by distributing commercial advertising, the prohibition of the code provision was lawfully invoked against his conduct.”

It should also be noted that the case of *Valentine vs. Chrestensen*, *supra*, came after the decisions of *Cantwell v. Connecticut*, 310 U. S. 305, 84 L. Ed. 1213, *Lovell* and *Hague* cases *supra*. So, there is a clear indication that the freedom of the press and speech guarantees of the Constitution apply to non-commercial activities only.

The Supreme Court has also said in the case of *Stephenson v. Binford*, 287 U. S. 251, 77 L. Ed. 288:

“It is well established law that the highways of the State are public property—that their use for purposes of gain is special and extraordinary, which, generally, at least, the state may prohibit or condition as it sees fit.”

In the case of *City of Chicago v. Rhine*, 2 N. E. 2d 905, a case directly in point, and in which case the selling of magazines as a business was prohibited in certain congested districts and an objection was raised that the constitutional right of freedom of speech and of the press was violated by such restriction, the court said at page 909:

“The defendant has not been deprived of any supposed right freely to sell any magazines which are written or published on any subject. The ordinance has merely regulated his business



of making sales on the streets in certain restricted regions in the city. His business has not been suppressed. The business of all others in a like situation and like business has been equally regulated. Such regulation does not run against the grain of the constitution. The ordinance does not prohibit the sale nor the offering for sale of any magazines or any like publications in the city nor interfere with the circulation thereof." (Cites cases)

### III. THE RESTRICTION OF CERTAIN AREAS FROM THE BUSINESS OF THE SALE OF MAGAZINES FOR PRIVATE GAIN IS NOT A BURDEN ON INTER-STATE COMMERCE.

Appellant in his brief under point II of his argument cites several cases holding that cities do not have the power to license or tax inter-state commerce; nowhere in appellant's complaint does he allege that the city did or attempted to exact a license or tax from him for the privilege of engaging in any interstate business or commerce. As a matter of fact Section 3722 of the Revised Ordinances of Salt Lake City, Utah, 1944, as amended, specifically exempts any persons engaging in inter-state business from procuring a license from the city to so engage in such business. In the last paragraph under point II of appellant's argument he says:

"In the case at bar the agent is prohibited from soliciting business within a large section of the city by this ordinance and therefore such restriction limits the free flow of business between

the states and that area and is a burden upon interstate commerce.”

Under its police power a city has a right to make reasonable regulations for the conduct of any business for the purpose of promoting the peace, health and prosperity of its citizens.

In the case of *Town of Green River v. Bunger*, 58 Pac. 2d 456, which case was appealed to the United States Supreme Court, in 300 U. S. 638, 81 L. Ed. 854, a city ordinance provided that it was unlawful to make a solicitation at any residence within the city for the purpose of obtaining orders for the sale of goods, wares and merchandise without first being invited by the occupant of such residence to make such solicitation. A solicitor was arrested for such offense and the validity of the ordinance was attacked on the grounds that it was a burden on inter-state commerce by restricting the places that could be solicited, but the court held the ordinance valid, and stated at page 463:

“We have in this case no question of the exaction of a license fee or a tax. The ordinance clearly is a local police regulation. We have decided that it has a real relation to the suitable protection of people in their homes, and is reasonable in its requirements. If we are right in our views as to the purpose and reasonableness of the ordinance, it is valid, even though it may incidentally affect interstate commerce. Both federal courts that considered the ordinance were of the same opinion on that question. Fuller Brush

Co. v. Town of Green River, 60 Fed. 613, and Town of Green River v. Fuller Brush Co., 65 Fed. 2d 112, 88 A.L.R. 177. The Circuit Court of Appeals said: 'The ordinance does not purport to interfere in any respect with the Fuller Brush Company's right or privilege of selling and transporting its wares in interstate commerce. It is free to carry on a business of that sort except to solicit orders in the manner specified in the ordinance, and obviously it could do so in many ways other than imposing itself upon and disturbing the residents of the town as prohibited by the ordinance'."

In the case of *Green River v. Fuller Brush Co.*, 65 Fed. 2d 112, the court said:

"It has been uniformly held that while legislative authority may not arbitrarily interfere with private affairs by imposing unusual and unnecessary restrictions upon a lawful business, yet a considerable latitude of discretion must be accorded to the law making power, and if the regulation operates uniformly upon all persons similarly situated and it is not shown that it is clearly unreasonable and arbitrary, it cannot be judicially declared to be in contravention of constitutional right.

"This court has frequently affirmed that the local authorities intrusted with the regulation of such matters, and not the courts, are primarily the judges of the necessities of local situations calling for such legislation, and the courts may only interfere with laws or ordinances passed in pursuance of the police power where they are so arbitrary as to be palpably and unmistakably

in excess of any reasonable exercise of the authority conferred.”

And in further holding that the restrictions imposed by local law did not interfere with interstate commerce stated:

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